
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

November 7, 2017   9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Phil Boyum 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) City of Statesboro Employee of the Quarter 
B) Retirement of Marvin Mincer, Collection Equipment Operator, for 11 years of service 
C) Retirement of Terrell Evans, Water & Sewer Laborer, for 19 years of service  

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 10-17-2017 Council Minutes 
b) 10-17-2017 Executive Session Minutes 

 
6. Consideration of a Motion to approve an application for Sec.6-17(d) exemptions to open 

container prohibition. 
a) Eagle Creek Brewing Company 

 
7. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2017-38: A Resolution to approve the 

revision to the City of Statesboro Job Classification and Compensation Plan by approving 
the proposed pay grade assignments, classifications and job descriptions for sworn police 
officers and update of the classification and compensation plan. The increases would 
begin on January 1, 2018. 

 
8. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-39: A Resolution to hereby 

amend the City's Classification and Compensation Plan as follows: 

• Merge the Natural Gas Department with the Water/Wastewater Department and name the new 
single Department, Public Utilities Department,  

• Dissolve the Position of Director of Water/Wastewater, 
• Re-Title the Position of Director of Natural Gas as Director of Public Utilities, 
• Re-Classify the Position of Assistant Director of Water/Wastewater to Compliance Project 

Manager, 
• Re-Title the Position of Assistant Director of Natural Gas as Natural Gas Superintendent, 
• Within the Wastewater Division, Create the New Position of Operations Supervisor. 

9. Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution #2017-40   , a Resolution approving the 
City of Statesboro’s proposed FY 2018 Street Resurfacing List, and further authorizing 
the Mayor to execute the GDOT LMIG Application. GDOT will allocate $298,311.22 to 



 
 

the City and requires 30% matching funds. The City has $315,000 in matching funds 
from 2013 SPLOST budgeted for the project under ENG-40 in FY 2018.    

 
10. Consideration of a motion to approve Task Order 2 of Stormwater Master Planning with 

Ecological Planning Group, LLC in the amount of $90,220.00 to perform stormwater 
hydrologic & hydrology modeling of Basin #7, MLK West. 

 
11. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract for utility billing services to South Data 

per the terms submitted in their request for proposals response. If approved, this would be 
paid out of the Water/Sewer Fund. 
 

12. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract for the purchase of a Spotter truck to 
Briggs Equipment in the amount of $104,976.48. If approved, this would be paid for 
using 2013 SPLOST Funds and is listed under CIP # SWD-34. 

 
13. Discussion/update on the appointment of an outside third party regarding the review of 

the RFQ for health insurance for the City of Statesboro.. 
 

14. Discussion of the Police Substation near Georgia Southern University. 
 

15. Other Business from City Council 
 

16. City Managers Comments 
 

17. Public Comments (General) 
 

18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 
October 17, 2017 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on October 17, 2017 at 5:30p.m. in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn and Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager Randy 
Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and City Attorney 
Cain Smith.  Councilman John Riggs was absent.    
The Meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Travis Chance 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Mayor Moore presented a proclamation to Kim Billings of Safe Haven to recognize “Domestic 
Violence Awareness Month”.  
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 10-03-2017 Council Minutes 

B) Consideration of a motion to adopt Resolution 2017-36 : A Resolution 
authorizing the destruction of certain municipal records that have met their 
retention. 
 

Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion for Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
regarding participation of Bulloch County and payment of a portion of its tax increment to 
City of Statesboro TAD #1: Downtown TAD. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) regarding participation of Bulloch County and payment of 
a portion of its tax increment to City of Statesboro TAD #1: Downtown TAD. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 17-10-
01: Paul D. Walsh requests a zoning map amendment for .7 acres of property located at 
Lanier Drive from R4 (High Density Residential District) to CR (Commercial Retail) 
zoning district to construct a mixed-use retail center (Tax Parcel # MS63 000010 000). 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Sam Dipolito, representing the applicant, spoke in favor of the request. 
 
 Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion with staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman 
Boyum to approve APPLICATION # RZ 17-10-01: Paul D. Walsh requests a zoning map 
amendment for .7 acres of property located at Lanier Drive from R4 (High Density Residential 
District) to CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district to construct a mixed-use retail center (Tax 
Parcel # MS63 000010 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 17-09-
02: Robert Byrd requests a zoning map amendment for .14 acres of property located at 204 
Roundtree Street from R6 (Single-Family Residential) to CR (Commercial Retail) zoning 
district to construct a parking lot, farmer’s market and community area (Tax Parcel # S09 
000068 000). 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Robert Byrd spoke in favor of the request. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Jones made a motion with staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman Boyum 
to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 17-09-02: Robert Byrd requests a zoning map amendment 
for .14 acres of property located at 204 Roundtree Street from R6 (Single-Family Residential) to 
CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district to construct a parking lot, farmer’s market and 
community area (Tax Parcel # S09 000068 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 17-10-02: 
Whitfield Signs requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 3 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance for 8.24 acres of property located at 409 Clairborne Avenue 
regarding the maximum allowed for freestanding and building signs in Sign District 1 (Tax 
Parcel # S53 000001 000). 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Josh Whitfield of Whitfield Signs, on behalf of the applicant and YMCA, spoke in favor of the 
request. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chacne made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to Approve: 
APPLICATION # V 17-10-02: Whitfield Signs requests a variance from Article XV Section 
1509(C) Table 3 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance for 8.24 acres of property located at 409 
Clairborne Avenue regarding the maximum allowed for freestanding and building signs in Sign 
District 1 (Tax Parcel # S53 000001 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted 
in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2017-35: A Resolution of the Mayor and 
City Council of Statesboro to adopt the bylaws and letter of support for the Keep 
Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission (KSBBC).  
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve Resolution 
2017-35: A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro to adopt the bylaws and 
letter of support for the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission (KSBBC). Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Mayor Moore thanked State Legislator Jan Tankersley for helping to get this project started up 
again with a previous grant.  
 
Consideration of a motion to reject all bids for the "South College Street Headwall 
Construction" Project 
 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to reject all bids for the 
"South College Street Headwall Construction" Project. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Discussion of TSPLOST and authorize the City Manager and staff to continue the 
preliminary negotiations regarding the City’s participation. 
 
After discussion, Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to 
authorize the City Manager and staff to continue the preliminary negotiations regarding the 
City’s participation. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. 
The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council:  None 
 
City Managers Comments 
 
City Manager Randy Wetmore updated Council on projects that were completed or on-going in 
various departments. The list included: 

1. A report for the 1 percent millage rate increase for police salaries would be brought to 
Council in November. The raises would include a portion of the increase and would take 
effect on January 1, 2018. 

2. The Right Start meetings are going well. 
3. We have completed the customer service class. 
4. The Police Department has the new website up and running 
5. Customer Service is now part of the newly hired training orientation 
6. Public Works is working on a facebook page and twitter 
7. Planning and Zoning is cross training employees 
8. Reviewing ordinances for updates 
9. Implemented auto read meters 
10. City Hall porch will be completed by November 
11. Looking at a utility payment drop box off site 
12. Utility applications on line 
13. New City Hall hours to pay utility bills 

 
Public Comments (General): 
 A citizen complimented Mayor and Council on how the meeting was conducted and that 
everything was nice. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Real Estate” and 
“Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 
At 6:27 pm, Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to enter into 
Executive Session to discuss “Real Estate” and “Potential Litigation” in accordance with 
O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
At 7:03 pm. Councilman Chance made a motion seconded by Councilman Jones to exit 
Executive Session. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. 
The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 



 
 

 Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:03 pm. 
 
 
 
 



























































































 

 

 
PAY GRADE ASSIGNMENTS 40 HOUR 

WORK WEEK CLASSIFICATIONS 
 

 
Class Title 

 

    

   Grade 

Groundskeeper 

Maintenance Worker 

Refuse Collector  

Water & Sewer Laborer 

 
 

102 

Custodian 

Equipment Operator 

Parts Clerk 

Scale Clerk 

 
 

103 

Administrative Clerk  

Collection Equipment Operator 

Community Information Specialist 

Customer Service Representative 

Equipment Operator, Senior 

Streets Maintenance Crew Leader 

 

 
 

104 

Accounting Technician 

Camera Operator 

Communications Officer 

Customer Service Representative, Senior 

Deputy Clerk 

Mechanic 

Meter Reader 

Water & Sewer Crew Leader 

 

 
 
 
 

105 

Administrative Assistant 

Communications Officer, Senior 

Instrument Technician 

Maintenance  Technician     

Meter System Technician 

Natural Gas Service Technician 

Utility Service Technician   

Water & Sewer System Operator 

WWTP Operator 

 
 
 
 

 
106 



 

 

 
 

PAY GRADE ASSIGNMENTS  

40 HOUR WORK WEEK CLASSIFICATIONS 

 
 

Class Title 
    

Grade 
Accounting & Payroll Technician 

Accounts Payable Technician 

Equipment Crew Leader   

Keep-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator 

Landfill Crew Leader 

Sanitation Collection Crew Leader 

Stormwater Crew Leader       

Traffic Operations Crew Leader 

 

 
 
 

107 

Camera Crew Foreman 

Instrumentation Crew Leader 

Maintenance Crew Leader 

Mechanic, Senior      

Municipal Clerk of Court  

Records Clerk 

Tax & License Clerk 

Water & Sewer Crew Foreman 

WWTP Operator, Chief 

 

 
 
 
 

108 

City Clerk, Assistant  

Code Compliance Officer  

Laboratory Technician Natural 

Gas Crew Leader 

Planning & Development Specialist  

Utility Billing Clerk 

Utility Locater/Customer Service Technician 

 
 
 
 
 

109 

Code Compliance Officer, Senior 

Communications Supervisor   

 Executive Assistant   

 Fire Inspector 

IT Support Specialist 

Mechanic, Lead     

Parks Supervisor 

Stormwater Supervisor 

Streets Supervisor 

Water & Sewer Supervisor 

 

 
 
 
 

110 

Accountant 

Building Inspector 

HR Coordinator 

City Planner   

 

 

 

 
 
 

111 

Laboratory Supervisor 

Maintenance Supervisor 

Natural Gas Supervisor 

Sanitation Superintendent, Assistant  

SCADA Administrator 

Stormwater Technician 

Street and Parks Superintendent, Assistant 

Water & Sewer Superintendent, Assistant 

 
 
 
 

112 



 

 

 
 

PAY GRADE ASSIGNMENTS 

40 HOUR WORK WEEK CLASSIFICATIONS 

 
 

Class Title 
 

Grade 
Accountant, Senior   

HR Coordinator, Senior 

Sergeant, Office of Professional Standards 

 
113 

Network Administrator 

 

 

114 

Building Official   

Civil Engineer     

Fleet Superintendent 

GIS Administrator 

Landfill  Superintendent 

Sanitation  Superintendent 

Training Captain‐FD 

 
 
 
 
 

115 

Director of Finance, Assistant  

Director of Natural Gas, Assistant 

Streets and Parks Superintendent 

Wastewater  Superintendent 

Water & Sewer Superintendent 

 
 

116 

Battalion Chief 

City Engineer, Assistant 

 

118 

Fire Prevention Officer 

Fire Training Chief 

Stormwater Manager 

 
 

119 

Water & Wastewater Director, Assistant 120 

Deputy Fire Chief 121 

  

City Clerk 

City Engineer 

Director of Central Services 

Director of Human Resources 

Director of Information Technology 

Director of Planning & Development 

 

 
 
 

123 

Director of Finance  

 

 

124 
Fire Chief 125 

Director of Public Works & Engineering  

Director of Public Utilities  

 

126 

Deputy City Manager 128 



 

 

 
 

 

PAY GRADE ASSIGNMENTS 56 HOUR 

WORK WEEK CLASSIFICATIONS 

 

    

Class Title 

 

    
Grade 

Firefighter 101 

Fire Engineer 102 

Lieutenant‐FD 105 

Captain‐FD 108 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
  Sue Starling, City Clerk 
From:  Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Date:  October 30, 2017 
RE:  Council’s Consideration of Restructuring the Natural Gas &  
  Water/ Wastewater Departments  
   
    
Policy Issue: Amendment to City’s Classification and Compensation Plan 
 
Recommendation: To approve the following: 

• Merge the Natural Gas Department with the Water/Wastewater Department 
and name the new single Department, Public Utilities Department,  

• Dissolve the Position of Director of Water/Wastewater, 
• Re-Title the Position of Director of Natural Gas as Director of Public Utilities 

(Grade 126), 
• Re-Classify the Position of Assistant Director of Water/Wastewater to Compliance 

Project Manager (Grade TBD), 
• Re-Title the Position of Assistant Director of Natural Gas as Natural Gas Supt. 

(Grade to remain 116) 
• Within the Wastewater Division, Create the New Position of Operations 

Supervisor (Grade TBD). 
 
Background: The creation of the Public Utilities Department through the merger of the 
Natural Gas and Water/ Wastewater Departments should lead to an overall more 
efficient operation.  The planned restructuring and reorganization should provide us 
with the opportunity to better utilize our resources and to enhance the communication 
between all of the personnel and all of the Divisions.  In addition, it will provide some 
long time personnel the opportunity to advance in grade. 
 
Budget Impact:  With the dissolution of one Senior Administrator position, the creation 
of one Supervisor position, and the re-classification of other positions (salaries still to be 
determined), the “net” number of positions will be zero (0).  I anticipate the overall 
impact to the personnel budget to be zero (0) or possibly even result in some savings.    
 
Council Person and District:  All 
Attachments:  (Resolution, 2 Organization Charts) 



RESOLUTION 2017-39: A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE JOB POSITION  
CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN 

THAT WHEREAS, it is essential to have qualified municipal employees in order to provide reliable 
services to the citizens of Statesboro; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to accomplish this the Mayor and City Council previously have adopted a 
new Job Position Classification and Compensation Plan on April 25, 2017; and  
 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Deputy City Manager have made a recommendation to merge 
and re-structure the Natural Gas and Water/Wastewater Departments.    

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia in regular session assembled this 7th day of November, 2017 as follows: 

Section 1. That the Job Position Classification and Compensation Plan, which includes a list of job titles 
and pay grades; a grade and step pay matrix; and written job descriptions for each position within City 
government, previously adopted on April 5, 2017, and as subsequently amended, is hereby further 
amended as follows: 

• Merge the Natural Gas Department with the Water/Wastewater Department and name the new 
single Department, Public Utilities Department,  

• Dissolve the Position of Director of Water/Wastewater, 
• Re-Title the Position of Director of Natural Gas as Director of Public Utilities (Grade 126),  
• Re-Classify the Position of Assistant Director of Water/Wastewater to Compliance Project 

Manager (Grade TBD), 
• Re-Title the Position of Assistant Director of Natural Gas as Natural Gas Superintendent (Grade 

to remain 116), 
• Within the Wastewater Division, Create the New Position of Operations Supervisor (Grade 

TBD). 

Section 2. That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after its date of 
adoption. 

Passed and adopted this 7th day of November 2017. 

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

By:   
 Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

 

Attest:   
 Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

 







 
 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

 

From:  Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 

  Brad Deal, PE, City Engineer 

 

Date:  10/30/2017 

 

RE:  FY2018 Resurfacing List and LMIG Application 

 

Policy Issue:  Street Resurfacing 

 

Recommendation:  

 

Engineering staff recommends approval of the attached resolution, list for 

resurfacing projects for FY2018, and the GDOT LMIG FY2018 application.  

 

Background:  

 

Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG), is an annual program in 

which GDOT allocates transportation funds to local governments. The City uses 

these funds to supplement the Street Resurfacing Budget.  City Engineering staff 

evaluates City streets annually to prioritize and select streets for the yearly LMIG 

resurfacing list that is submitted to GDOT. 

 

Budget Impact:   

 

For FY2018, GDOT will allocate $298,311 to the City of Statesboro with a minimum 

requirement of at least 30% matching funds.  The City has $315,000 in 2013 

SPLOST funds budgeted in ENG-40.  The total budget for the resurfacing project 

will be $613,311. 

 

Council Person and District: 

The street resurfacing list includes streets in each district. 

 

Attachments:  LMIG Application 

   Resolution 

   Street Resurfacing List 

   Street Resurfacing Map 



RESOLUTION #2017-40: 

 A Resolution approving the City of Statesboro Proposed Fiscal Year 2018 Street Resurfacing Program 
List and further authorizing the Mayor to execute the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) 
Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) Application for Fiscal Year 2018. 

 THAT WHEREAS, the City participates in the GDOT LMIG Program; 

 WHEREAS, this program provides funding assistance for road improvement projects within the 
City of Statesboro for the benefit of the citizenry; 

 WHEREAS, the LMIG program requires that the City present a list of streets for participation 
annually and that the City execute the Local Government Affidavit and Certification in order to 
receive funding assistance for the listed streets, with the City providing at least 30% matching 
funds; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia as follows: 

Section 1. The City Engineer has prepared a list of roads for funding through the LMIG program to the 
City Manager. The City Manager has reviewed the list and recommends approval by the City Council. 

Section 2. The City Council has reviewed the list prepared by the City Engineer attached to this 
resolution and has received the recommendation of the City Manager. The City Council authorized the 
Mayor to execute the Local Government Affidavit and Certification with GDOT. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of adoption. 

Adopted this 7th day of November, 2017. 

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

 

By:  ________________________                         Attest:  ______________________      
       Jan Moore, Mayor                 Sue Starling, City Clerk                                                 











 
 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

 

From:  Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 

  Brad Deal, P.E., City Engineer 

 

Date:  10/31/2017 

 

RE:  Recommendation for Approval of Stormwater Master Planning: Task Order 

2 

 

Policy Issue:  Purchasing 

 

Recommendation:  

Staff recommends approval of proposed Task Order #2 in the amount of $90,220.00 

from Ecological Planning Group, LLC (EPG) as part of their Stormwater Masterplanning 

Professional Services Agreement. Task Order 2 includes assessment and survey of basin 

#7 (MLK West Basin, see Attachment), Construct hydrology & hydrologic model of basin 

#7, recommend solutions and conceptual designs for issues discovered in basin #7, and 

project management as needed.  

 

Background:  

On August 16, 2016 City Council approved the City Manager to negotiate a contract 

with EPG to perform consulting services to assist the City in the preparation of master 

planning for our comprehensive stormwater management program. Staff has 

negotiated a cost for services under the second task order in a not to exceed amount 

of $90,220.00. In addition Darren Prather, Director of Central Services, has offered GIS 

staff resources on this project to save the City money and to improve service delivery in 

maintaining StaGIS stormwater layers. Under the contract, or professional services 

agreement, EPG will perform a comprehensive list of services for the City. Therefore, we 

have separated EPG’s services into separate task orders. This will be the second of those 

task orders.  

 

Budget Impact:   

The amount for Task Order #2, by EPG, of $90,220.00 is below the budgeted amount of 
$119,675.00.  The project is to be paid for through stormwater utility funds under STM-1 

Masterplanning CIP. 

Council Person and District: Councilman Sam Jones in District 2 

 

Attachments: Task Order #2 

CC: Robert Cheshire, PE, Deputy City Manager 

        Darren Prather, Director of Central Services 



 

 

TASK ORDER NO. 02 

 

To the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

Assessment, Modeling, and Conceptual Design of Basin No. 7 

 

This Task Order, made and entered into by and between the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro, 

GA hereinafter called the "CITY" and Ecological Planning Group, LLC., hereinafter called the 

"CONSULTANT", shall be incorporated into and become a part of the PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT (the "AGREEMENT") entered into by the parties hereto on 

_________________. 

 

A.  PURPOSE 

 

This Task Order authorizes and directs the CONSULTANT to proceed with assisting the CITY 

with completion of the assessment of the basin, hydrologic and hydraulic modeling of the existing 

drainage system, and conceptual design of drainage system improvements.  

 

B.  CONSULTANT’S SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The Scope of Services, dated October 25, 2017, is specifically described herein.  Based on the 

findings from Task Order 01, Basin #7 (MLK West) was identified as the highest priority basin to 

model and masterplan.  Basin #7 has a total area of 242 acres, 3.1 miles of ditches, and 2.3 miles 

of pipe, and a map of this basin is provided at the end of this section.  The specific tasks to complete 

for Basin #7, as part of this Task Order, are described below. 

 

Task 1. Assessment and Survey of Basin #7 

The Project Team will field-investigate any missing stormwater drainage features and connections 

that are apparent from the current GIS drainage inventory.  The Project Team will also perform a 

survey of the closed and open drainage conveyance in Basin #7 (MLK West).  All structures and 

pipe run inverts will be located with survey-grade accuracy sufficient for developing a hydraulic 

model of the system(s), and the coordinates and elevations of these structures will be updated in 

the City’s GIS database. Survey-grade information is needed for the following structures: 
 

Structure Type Total Count 

Box Culvert 5 

Catch Basin 54 

Curb Inlet 10 

Drop Inlet 9 

End of Pipe 47 

Flared End Section 2 

Headwall 19 

Headwall, Double 1 

Junction 13 

Yard Inlet 6 

Stream Cross Sections 22 

Total 188 



 

 

Field visits will also be conducted to inspect other site conditions that would impact drainage (e.g., 

terrain and structural breaklines, ditches, curb and gutter, etc.), such that they can be incorporated 

into the hydrologic / hydraulic (H&H) model. 

 

Task 2: Construct H&H Model of Basin 7 

Once the survey and field assessment of the basin has been completed, H&H modeling will be 

performed utilizing Streamline Technologies’ ICPR4 1D/2D modeling software.  Digital soils, 

land cover maps, and LIDAR data will be incorporated into the model utilizing ICPR4’s 

georeferenced graphic system.  The conditions of the existing drainage system will be modeled for 

the 1-year, 5-year, 10-year, 25-year, and 100-year, 24-hour design events to identify areas with 

drainage deficiencies.  The results will be presented to the City to prioritize areas for conceptual 

designs to address these deficiencies.  A map of the as-built stormwater system and summary 

report from the H&H modeling will be provided to the City.  In addition, all survey results and 

model inputs that are identified or delineated in GIS (e.g., elevations of structures and inverts, 

coordinates, impervious cover) will be provided as GIS layers to the City. 

 

Task 3: Recommendations and Conceptual Design 

Conceptual design recommendations for regional pond/storage within the basin will be developed 

to address deficiencies identified in Task 2.  If area is unavailable, the Project Team will consider 

options for adding new inlets or increasing pipe capacity. The Project Team will also identify areas 

on publicly-owned property and rights-of-ways where green infrastructure/low impact 

development (GI/LID) stormwater management practices may be implemented to infiltrate and 

treat stormwater runoff at its source and reduce runoff volume.  Depending of the amount of green 

infrastructure retrofit opportunities identified, the increase in pipe size through traditional 

improvements may be less or may not be needed all together. The City may want to consider 

implementing some GI/LID retrofits because they provide additional water quality benefits and 

improve aesthetics. The Project Team will develop two (2) conceptual designs and cost estimates 

for regional pond/storage within the basin, which will be presented to the City.  

 

Task 4: Project Management: 

This task will include coordination with City staff, management of the project team, and general 

project management.  The Project Team will attend a kick-off meeting with City staff and will 

continue to meet with the City periodically throughout the course of this project. EPG staff will 

also regularly communicate with and update the City on the progress of this project through emails 

and conference calls. 

 

Schedule 

The proposed schedule is to complete Task 1 within two (2) months after executing this Task 

Order.  Once the survey and assessment of Basin #7 is complete, EPG proposes to complete the 

scope of services described herein within an additional three (3) months.  The total project timeline 

is expected to be completed within five (5) months after executing the Task Order. 

 

 

  





 

 

C.  CONSULTANT’S COMPENSATION 

 

As consideration for providing the services enumerated within Item B (above) of this Task Order, 

the CITY shall pay the CONSULTANT in accordance with the AGREEMENT.   

 

Task 1. Assessment of Basin 7 

The specific method of compensation for this Task is Lump Sum as enumerated in the Exhibit B 

of the AGREEMENT. The Lump Sum amount for this task is $35,420. 

 

Task 2: Construct H&H Model of Basin 7 

The specific method of compensation for this Task is Lump Sum as enumerated in the Exhibit B 

of the AGREEMENT. The Lump Sum amount for this task is $39,475. 

 

Task 3: Recommendations and Conceptual Design 

The specific method of compensation for this Task is Lump Sum as enumerated in the Exhibit B 

of the AGREEMENT. The Lump Sum amount for this task is $9,825. 

 

Task 4: Project Management 

The specific method of compensation for this Task is Hourly Billing Rates as enumerated in the 

Exhibit B of the AGREEMENT. CITY agrees to pay the CONSULTANT monthly, for work 

completed, on the basis of the standard hourly billing rates in effect when services are provided by 

the CONSULTANT’s employees of various labor grades. The total contract amount for the Task 

shall not exceed $5,500 without prior written authorization by the CITY.





 
 CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

J. Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 10-31-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: RFP Utility Billing Services 
 
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend this contract for utility billing services be awarded to South 
Data as they were unanimously selected by the evaluation team per the 
evaluation criteria contained in the request for proposals issued. If approved, this 
contract will be for one year with the option to renew, on a year to year basis, 
for two additional years. 
 
Background:  
 
The City of Statesboro issued a request for proposals (RFP) to provide utility billing 
services. If approved, this contract will provide services that include the mailing 
envelope, printing of the utility bill and postage. The total for this recommended 
vendor is $0.43 per mailing times approximately 15,000 mailings a month ($6,450 
cost per month/$77,400 cost per year). Currently, the City prints the bills in-house, 
uses an envelope stuffing machine that is in need of replacement and takes the 
bills to the post office. This process has a cost of approximately $0.45 per mailing. 
When the cost of maintaining an envelope stuffing machine and other expenses 
are added to this cost per mailing of $0.45 per mailing, an overall cost greater 
than the proposed contract amount of $0.43 per mailing is reached. In addition 
to this cost, an employee’s time spent overseeing the stuffing machine and 
running to the post office is saved. Since this was a RFP process, a team 
evaluated the proposals based on cost, experience with municipal billing, 
experience with similar projects and references. After proposals were evaluated 
by individual team members and discussed as a group, a unanimous consensus 



 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

was reached to recommend South Data for the utility billing services contract. 
The following vendors submitted proposals: 
 
 
 
 
 
Vendor     Cost per Mailing 
 

1. Info Send     $  .456 
2. Lawhorn Group   *$2.35 
3. Professional Mail Service   $  .4715 
4. Postal Pros     $  .498 
5. South Data     $  .43 
6. Touch Point     $  .453 

 
Note: 
Lawhorn did not bid as requested and added unneeded services in their lump 
sum total. South Data was the top selection by all five evaluation team 
members. In addition to offering the lowest cost per mailing in this RFP process, 
they also excelled in all other evaluation criteria areas as well. 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
 
Attachments: None 
 



 
 CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

J. Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 10-31-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: Bid Award—Yard Spotter Truck/Transfer Station 
  
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend the City of Statesboro award the contract to purchase a yard 
spotter truck from Briggs Equipment in the amount of $104,976.48 as they 
submitted the lowest responsive sealed bid. 
 
Background:  
 
 The City of Statesboro issued an invitation to bid for the purchase of a new yard 
spotter truck. If approved, this truck will be used at the transfer station primarily 
to move trailers around the complex. The current yard spotter will be transferred 
to the Shop at Public Works for limited use and the Shop’s current 1997 model 
will be brought to Council for surplus at a later date. This truck is budgeted in this 
fiscal year in the amount of $115,000 and is listed under CIP# SWD-34. This 
invitation to bid was advertised as required and sent to several dealerships. We 
received sealed bids from the following: 
 

1. Briggs Equipment            Ottawa T2 DOT 4x2  $104,976.48 
2. Cumberland Int. Trucks  Capacity TJ5000   $107,326.32 
3. Yancey Power Systems  Tico Pro Spotter DOT  $109,116.02  

 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
Attachments: None 


	11-7-2017 Council Agenda
	10-17-2017 Council minutes
	11-2017 Eagle Creek Special event
	11-2017-38 Police Salaries
	11-2017-38 Classification Plan - Updated 11-2-17
	11-2017-39 Council Memo Director of PU
	11-2017-39  Resolution for City Council Public Utilities
	11-2017-39 Current Org Chart
	11-2017-39  Proposed Org Chart
	11-2017-40 FY 18 Resurfacing and LMIG Memo
	11-2017-40 LMIG resolution for City Council FY2018
	11-2017-40 FY 18 Resurfacing List and LMIG Application
	11-2017-40 Resruface Map
	11-2017 Task Order No. 2 Council Agenda Memo-stormwater
	11-2017 Statesboro Masterplan TOF 02-EPG-103117- stormwater task order 2
	TOF 02 Basin 7 Modeling_Statesboro103117.pdf
	Statesboro Basin 7-scanned.pdf
	TOF 02 Basin 7 Modeling_Statesboro103117.pdf
	Signed TOF page-Ed.pdf

	11-2017 Memo New Form--Utility Billing Services RFP Rec (6)
	11-2017 Memo New Form--Yard Spotter Truck Rec (3)

